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R O O S    I N N O V A T I O N S


Keith Sappenfield
October 27, 2024


To:	Keith Sappenfield
From:	Jamila Piracci
Date:	October 27, 2024	

Re:	OTC Derivatives Considerations for NAESB Base Contract for Sale and Purchase of Hydrogen

Dear Mr. Sappenfield:

Please see below for feedback regarding the NAESB Base Contract for Sale and Purchase of Hydrogen, based on my expertise in financial derivatives and as a liaison for ISDA’s Energy, Commodities & Developing Products Group to assist both ISDA and NAESB with collaboration on this important documentation project.  My suggestions are of course in deference to any NAESB member or commercial needs but hopefully ease the path for an efficient path to robust financing and hedging for this emerging market.

General
1. Is there an outside window that the Board has in mind for publication of the agreement?  Would it be useful for the working group to take one or more of the following (or similar) paths?
a. Establish some milestones for coordination with others, such as AIEN?  For example, there may be key commercial terms that should be consistent across the global market.
b. Set a framework for periodic review and future updates to the contract after publication so that it is expected and seamless to have revised versions in future years as governmental policy, societal demand, regulatory pressure, and financial incentives change.  All of these seem to change more frequently all the time.
2. It is beneficial that there is a goal of retaining relevant terms to the extent that hydrogen sales should behave like other commodity sales.  This will significantly aid further in financial modeling for financing and risk transfer purposes.  Of course, some unavoidable differences will present themselves, but casting uncertainty on existing markets can and should be avoided.  A good example is the retention of the exchange for related futures positions (EFPs) election and definition.  While the market for EFPs on hydrogen is likely to change as it becomes more mature, there is no way to guess at that today, so the above note to set expectations for future updates to the contract will support the flexibility needed.

Trading
1. An option to separate EACs from the hydrogen sale would be meaningful for financing and derivatives; specifically, it could allow for more participants than those who can make and take physical delivery, expanding the base market.  Further, it could make it easier to parse risk.  It should be noted that European rules are expected to require the physical commodity and the certificate be bundled, but this does not necessarily apply to all parties for all time, and the contract can allow for elections that create bundled or unbundled options, as the market and regulatory regime dictate.  Note, for example, ISDA’s Renewable Energy Certificate Annex.
2. Check on EFP definition and relevance to hydrogen.  Likely useful to keep as is but is there something in current futures trading that suggests a different mechanism?  I do not have an answer for this yet but will keep looking.

Supply Shortage Mechanism (Sections 2.33-2.34, 11.2)
1. There was a question whether it is fair that “Standard” means either party may interrupt its performance without liability in the event of force majeure.  It would be disruptive to derivatives documentation to use the H2 base contract to address uncertainty around force majeure.
2. The Supply Shortage concept is likely to be difficult for financial markets to incorporate.  It has echoes of force majeure, which is hard enough to manage despite how long it has been a staple in physical markets.  Further, it is curious to allow a free pass to the Seller.  Pricing is a more commercially appropriate mechanism to protect the Seller from non-performance liabilities in the event of supply shortages and can also be modeled for hedging and risk transfer through derivatives.  The Supply Shortage mechanism would be a wild card from financing and hedging/risk transfer perspectives.  One option could be to offer the Supply Shortage mechanism as an option so parties can choose to go that route without hindering the rest of the market from financial market engagement.  An election could be useful so that when Supply Shortage is used, it is in a standardized manner, allowing for at least some opportunity for financing, though perhaps more expensive than a deal where Supply Shortage has not been elected.
3. If Supply Shortage is retained, either as a standard term or as an election, 
a. Could the inability to transport H2 to the delivery point(s) simply be captured by force majeure rather than inserting something imposed by a Governmental Authority into a non-force majeure mechanism?
b. It is unnecessary to add to force majeure since the excuse provided by force majeure can arguably already cover what leads to a supply shortage.  Further, as a matter of principle, the H2 base contract is a suboptimal place to change the force majeure concept, notwithstanding that the market for H2 is nascent.
4. Check on this with ISDA’s Energy, Commodities & Developing Products Group - what is their experience with this mechanism in NGL contracts.  Is this a barrier in existing commodity contracts?  Better to use interruptible or as available contracts instead of firm contracts?  A representative from the group is expected to be in touch before Thanksgiving.

Confirmation
1. Hydrogen Quality Specifications and Carbon Intensity.  It is helpful that the confirmation anticipates a mechanism to set forth measurable characteristics of the hydrogen.  I agree with the removal of language having the parties agree to negotiate in good faith, as that should be the standard across all aspects of the commercial arrangement, not just the variance in carbon intensity.  However, to handle the fact that the terms for carbon intensity provide for some errancy (hence the word “expected”), there should be a clause that confirms a margin of error as satisfying the term “expected.”  This can aid in efficient financing and derivatives pricing.
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